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GRAGE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
REGISTRATION NUM BER 592488

A REGISTERED CHARITY
REGISTRATION NUMBER 251 675

ANNUAL REPORT

CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION

It is my privilege to introduce this year's annual report of the Grace Baptist Trust corporation. Weacknowledge God's faithfulness and thank Him for his goodness through another year as we haveendeavoured to support and encourage the work of the ch-urches"

In particular I would like to thank the office staff for all that they have done, as well as each of mycolleagues on the Council who give therr time, not only in attending committee meetings, but also in giving
their professional advice so willingly. For us, it is truly a privilege-to serve our Lord ii guiding, advising,
helping, supporting and encouraging churches.and Godis p"o"pt" as they in turn endeivourto faithfully
serve Him locally in furthering the cause of Christ.

ln my report last year, I mentioned that contracts had been exchanged for the sale of the former chapel inBrighton and I am pleased to report that the proceeds were recei"ved during the past year These havebeen set aside to create a Vision and Venture Fund and an lncidental-projects Fund and further
information about the purpose of these funds is provided in the accounts. We have also begun to assess
the possibilities for future ministry in Brighton in cooperation with other interested parties.

We have listed below the churches that have made a financial contribution to our General Fund during thepast year. The work of the Corporation is at a level not often noticed by most church members and it is
sometimes difficult for churches to identify with our ministry. The financiil support of the churches listed is
therefore particularly appreciated. Churches are coming under increasing demands by the authorities andwe believe that the corporation meets a very real neel through its varied ministries, both practical and
financial"

Please pray that we will be given wisdom and guidance as we seek to maintain the various ministries of the
Corporation during the coming year.

Kevin Wiltshire
a..-"_-_-

CHURCH DONATIONS
The following churches have contributed to the General Fund during 2017:

Accrington Bromley Caterham Chatham Cuckfield

Devizes Dunmow Dunstable Epsom Folkestone

Fressingfield Friston Halifax Haworth lpswich, S. Drive

Lewisham Occold Pidley Shepshed Somersham

Stoke Golding Trowbridge



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

The members of the Board of Directors submit their annual report and accounts for the year ended

31 Decemb er 2017 to be presented to the members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on

28 April 20'18.

Theaccountssetoutonpages12lo34havebeenpreparedinaccordancewiththehistoriccost
convention as modified by the revaluation of investments, and are in accordance with the

requirements of the Corporation'sArticles oiRssociation (dated 24th April 2010)' the Companies Act

2006, the charities Act 2011, the statement of Recommended Practice "Accounting and Reporting by

Charities" (201s), rnii6" Financial neportinJ'si".o,po FRS,102'' The accounts have been prepared

on a going concern Ou.i ,, there is sufficiSnt demand for the services provided by the Corporation

and sufficient resources to provide those services. The Directors consider that there are no material

uncertainties in this regard. The account. ; ;;bj"ct to audit. The accounts of the Grace Baptist Trust

Corporation Common-lnvestment funO are set out on pages 35 to 45 and are subject to audit" The

accounts on pages 12ia 3a do not include the trust funds of which the corporation is a Trustee'

CONSTITUTION
The Grace Baptist Trust corporation is registered in England as a company limited by guarantee and

not having a share capital (Registration uumne|. 5924-88). The corporation is also registered as a

Charity (Registration Number z*alsl, "nil. 
recogniseo as a Trust borporation under section 3(i) of

the Law of property (Amendment) Act 1g20. The corporation is governed by its Articles of

Association.

BOARD OF DTRECTORS
The requirements of t'u corporation's Articles of Association are that the Board of Directors must

consist of three Officers - Chairman, Oepuiy Chrirn.un, and Treasurer, and up to 20 other Directors'

The officers are appoinied by the eoaro oi Directors at the first Board Meeting following the Annual

General Meeting.

The Directors are elected at each Annual General Meeting from among the ordinary Members and the

Delegate Members oiir'" Corporation. Members of churcies that adhere to the corporation's doctrinal

basis may apply to Oe"omu Ordinary ft4urO"i. on payment of the annual subscription' Every church

that adheres to tne coiporrtion'. doctrlnat basis and makes an annual donation is entitled to nominate

Delegate Members un.i i. entitled to nominate a male member to be included in the list of persons to

be submitted to the meeting for election as a Director. As a member of the corporation' each Director

is liable to contribute f5 to iie assets of the corporation in the event of its being wound up'

The Board of Directors on 5 March 2018 (the date on which the Annual Report and Accounts were

approved) comprised the following:

Mr J N Broome BSc (Hons) MRICS IRRV

Mr P CantY CEng MCIBSE CMIOSH
MrARCopemanFRICS
MTABKeenLLB
Mr S A Partington BA (Hons) DiplArch RIBA
Mr R E PowellACll
PastorPDRelfFCA
Mr J A H Risbridger MA (Oxon)

Mr D W J Skull FRICS MFB (Treasurer)

Pastor D J Steere (Deputy Chairman)
MrKCWWiltshireACS|-FPCSMIoDCeTtPFSPFA(Chairman)

Unless otherwise stated, each
31't December 2017.

The corporation has a Trustees' lndemnity Policy in the sum of f3,000,000 for which a premium of

t-1,375 was paid.

Director served in that capacity throughout the year ended
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oRGANlsATloN 
'^ h\/ 'trr2r2ntee the I ed by the Board of Directors' As the

As a Company, limited by guarantee, the Corporatlon ls manag

Corporation is also a Registered Charity,.the Directors manage its affairs as Charity Trustees' The

Drrectors are also referred to as the Council of Management'

The councir of Management meets four times ayeat and has overarr responsibirity for the governance

of the corporation. lt is particularly responsible for dealing with matters involving policy' Routine

matters that require Board approval *ry n* O"rlt with ny ihe Executive Committee which normally

consists of the Chairman, Deputy Chairman, Treasurei and four other Directors The Executive

Commrttee may also deal with matters tu*ti"O to it by the Council of Management' ln addition' the

Executive Committee may consider n1rti"tt of p'otlcy, but only in the coniext of making

recommendations to the Council of Managlment. The Executive Committee meets up to five times a

year.

The officers (chairman, Deputy chairman, and Treasurer) consider matters that are particularly

confidential prior to their being reported to the Council of Management and they are able to advise the

Chief Executive in situations rihui" there is some uncertainty as to the correct application of matters of

policy. ln addition, ""itri, 
matters are remitt,ed to the Officeis for consideration where it is thought that

they should Oe Oiscusied by a committee that is smaller ihan the Executive Committee' The Chief

ixecutive attends all Officers' meetings. The Officers meet as necessary'

The chief Executive, (Mr Eric cousins FCCA), is responsible for implementing the policies and

resolutions of the Direciors and for attenOing t'all routine matters that do not involve the Council of

Management (as a body of Trustees or Bo"ard of Directors)" He has served in that capacity since

lrtJanuary 2000 and continued to serve at the date this report was approved by the Council of

Management.

TRUSTEES' INDUCTION AND TRAINING

As indicated above, the Trustees are elected at each Annual General Meeting from among the

Ordinary Members unJ tf," Delegate nnemlers of the Corporation' Members of churches that adhere

to the corporation,s doctrinal basis may ,pprv t" become ordinary Members on payment of the annual

subscription. Every church that adhere.l!ift" Corporation's doctrinal basis and makes an annual

donation to the Corporation is entitled to nominate Delegate Members and is entitled to nominate a

male member to be included in the list of peiron. to bJ submitted to the meeting for election as a

Trustee. As it is irpottrnt that only ril*n. having.. the desired professional expertise or

comprehensive knowledge of the churches'are nominated, the Board of Trustees works in partnership

with the individual churches regarding nominations'

once new Trustees are appointed, they are taken through a process., of induction by the chief

Executive who ensures that they understind the legal Ouli9J and responsibilities imposed on them as

Trustees, using the Charity Commission-prnri"rtiJn lC93^-,.The 
Essential Trustee" as a guide ln

addition, they are prouiO"O witn copies ottfi"botporatio-n's Articles of Association -the key provisions

of which are explained to them, together *[h-*biut of the Corporation's various policies and copies

of the most recent Statutory Accounts ,no lnnrrt Report. They are also provided with a set of the

minutes of the mostiecent irustues' tvteeiing t*r'.li.r.l lnctuoe , I.ui"t"n." to all outstanding issues) and

the chief Executive ensures that they are fuliy briefed on all ongoing matters'

TheTrusteesrequiretheChiefExecutivetokeepthemabreastofalldevelopmentsthathavea
bearingontheirroleasTrusteesnypr*ioingthemwithrelevantinformatlonsuchasariiclesfrom
charity magazines and briefing not", ,u[pi*i"O, Lf""ant bodies - such as the Charity Commission'

The corporation subscribes to ,,Govurnun""':*, gazine, and copies are made available to the officers'

Furthermore, as they exercise their res"p"on;ibi'6;.o1 ifre'goard' the Trustees draw upon their

extensive professional knowledge ,nO "*i"ii"nie 
- wfricl"r is,enhanced by their attendance at relevant

training courses tnatiorm part oi their continuing professional development'
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ST,ATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBII-ITIES
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Financial Statements in
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK
GAAP).

Company law requires the Directors to prepare accounts for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Corporation and of the surplus or deficit of the Corporation for that
period" ln preparing those accounts the Directors are required to:

. Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistenfly.

. Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

. State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the accounts.

. Prepare the accounts on a going-concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Corporation will continue in operation.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Corporation and which enable them to ensure that
the accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Corporation and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities"

So far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information (needed by the Corporation's
auditors in connection with preparing their report) of which the auditor is unaware. Each Director has
taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself aware of any
relevant audit information, and to establish that the Corporation's auditors are aware of that
information"

OBJECTIVE
The chief objective underlying all the activities of the Corporation is the advancement of the Christian
religion, particularly by means of and in accordance with the principles of Particular Baptist Churches
practising Strict Communion

AIMS
The Corporation aims to accomplish this objective by providing church officers with the resources they
need so that they are able to attend to the administrative, financial, legal, and practical aspects of
church life, in general, and to comply with their statutory obligations, in particular. The Directors
believe that these services are of considerable assistance to church officers and that this, in turn,
furthers the Corporation's legal objective as churches are able to concentrate on therr main task of
advancing the Christian religion. Whilst other similar charitable organisations exist within the Grace
Baptist family of churches, the Board of Directors consider that the 

-Corporation 
is in a unique position

to offer the level of professional support that we are able to, owing to the high level of professional
expertise represented on the Board.

STRATEGY
The nature of the Corporation's ministry is such that its objectives and the strategies it employs to
achieve- those objectives do not change significantly from year to year. Since thi Corporation is a"Trust Corporation", one of its fundamental ministries is to act as a Trustee of church property andvarious Trust Funds established under Charity Commission schemes, trust deeds, wills and other
instruments. The Directors' aspiration is to provide the churches and their members with the services,advice and general assistance that they require and to fulfil all of the Corporation,s responsibilities asTrustees of various chapels and Trust Funds as comprehensively and efficienfly as possible. Thestrategy adopted to achieve this has been the dissemination of information trrolgh a website andthrough the production of fact sheets, and other means as appropriate, to respond to the variousneeds of the churches as they have arisen and to provide routine services as a matter of course. TheDirectors have endeavoured to inform all potential beneficiaries of the services available to themthrough the website and other riterature, articres, ano aovertisiig, ,. appropriate
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ACTIVITIES AND ACHIEVEMENTS
The nature of the ministry of the Grace Baptist Trust Corporation makes it difficult to quantify the
success that has been achieved during the year and to compare that against the objective set -
especially since each church served by the Corporation is locally independent and not under the legal
or spiritual jurisdiction of the Directors. The objective set is to provide church officers with all the
assistance they need to run their churches effectively and the Directors consider that this has been
done. Specifically, the Corporation has been able to support the work of churches and their members
in the following ways

Advisory Services:
The Corporation's advisory services comprise the largest single aspect of the ministry of the
Corporation in terms of hours worked and take the form of a help desk where staff are able to provide
answers to specific queries churches may have. A considerable number of ielephone calls, emails, or
queries submitted through the website were addressed during the year As such queries relate to a
church's specific situation it is inappropriate to provide further details. ln addition fact sheets are
published to alert church officers to the requirements of current legislation and good practice. The cost
of providing these services amounted to f87,953 (2016. f.84,547). The number of letters of
appreciation received from church officers demonstrate how much these services are valued.

Benevolent Payments:
The Corporation administers a small number of Benevolent Funds which exist to provide financial
assistance to people in need, particularly serving or retired pastors of Strict Baptist Churches or the
members of such churches. Grants totalling f6,750 were given to five beneficiaries during the course
of the year (2016: f5,300 given to four). Letters received from the beneficiaries highlight the
significance of these grants to the level of their household income.

Chapel Projects:
The Corporation makes grants to churches towards the cost of constructing or maintaining their
chapels. During the year, grants totalling f251,631were awarded (20'16: f0). Such grants enable the
projects to be undertaken where it might otherwise not be possible.

Educational Support:
The Corporation administers a small Endowment Fund, the B A Warburton Memorial Fund, which
exists to provide financial support for male members of Strict Baptist Churches who plan to enter ihe
Ministry. The assistance given by the Corporatron takes the form of grants that are given towards the
cost of course fees or the purchase of books. No applications for grants were received during the year
and as at the year end the balance available for distribution stood atL1,155 (2016. t965).

Glft Aid Scheme.
The Corporation's Gift Aid Scheme comprises the largest single aspect of the ministry of the
Corporation in terms of financial turnover and represents the funds that are given to the Corporation to
support the ministry of specific churches and other organisations that further the aims and objectives
of the Corporation. During the year, f316,870 was received (20'16: L445,040). The sum of t315,574
was disbursed (2016: t438,265) with costs berng incurred of f12,565 (2016.f12,078) resulting in total
expenditure amounting to f328,139 (20'16: t450,343). Churches benefitting are able to extend their
ministries beyond the level they would otherwise be capable of achieving.

Ministry Support:
The Corporation administers certain funds that are either designated by the Directors to assist
churches in general, or are restricted by the donors for the support of specific churches in particular.
During the year, the sum of fl,944 was spenton these activities (2016'.L6,871). Churches benefitting
are able to extend their ministries beyond the level they would otherwise be capable of achieving.

Professional Services;
The Corporation acts as a Trustee of church property and various Trust Funds established under
Charity Commission schemes, trust deeds, wills and other instruments and provides other professional
services to churches or other organisations within the Grace Baptist family of churches, as the need
arises. As a Trustee of charitable land and property, the Corporation has been able to give extensive
advice to churches regarding the land and buildings for which they are responsible as well as legal
advice relating to compliance with their chapel trust deeds. The cost of providing these services
amounted to f26,535 (2016: L24,156) although the sum of f22,513 was received in respect of
chargeable services (2016: t13,614). Furiher details are given in note B.
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ASSOCIATED CHARITIES
Although not "associated" as defined by FRS 102, the Corporation works closely with a number of

charitable organisations with similar obj-ectives. ln particular, th" corporation_enjoys,cordial relations

with the various Associations of Grace eaptliicnurches and with the Grace Baptist Partnership The

Chief Executive is a Trustee and the Treaiurer of the Particular Baptist Fund and a Trustee of the

Baptist Building runo. whitst there is no formal link between the corporation and these charities' the

involvement of the Chief Executive enables f,im to represent the interests of Grace Baptist Churches'

GRANT MAKING POLICY
Grants are made to churches and individrrals under the terms of the various funds administered by the

Corporation. ln the case of the Pastors'funO, the Benevolent Fund and the Ministers'Aid Fund'

grants are made oirectty to individuals to relieve financial hardship. ln the case of the B A Warburton

Memorial Fund, grants are made directly to individuals who are preparing for the Ministry to assist

them with the costs of their training. ln the case of institutional grants, the grants are made to churches

to assist with the costs of church planting, building work and maintenance projects' The Directors

consider that training'r"n iot the'Ministiy and aisisting churches to plant further churches and

assisting them with ttieir ouitoing ano maintenance projecti will help thgm to fulfil their ministries This

will lead to the advancement of the Christian Religion, which itself is the legal objective of the

Corporation.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
During the year the Corporaiion incurred an operating deficit of f187,115 although this was offset by

the proceeds arising from the sale of two chapels imounting to f391,043 and investment gains of

t100,153 resulting in a net surplus of f304,081. lnctuded in these figures are two grants paid totalling

L251,63L A grant of f.1,631 was paid to Jubilee Baptist Church, Occold to asslst with the cost of

installing a pA system and a grant of f250,000 was paid to Cuckfield Baptist Church to assist with the

cost of their new chapel UuiiOing. Your attention is drawn to note 30.2. ln the previous year an

operating deficit of f 15;335 was oifset by investment gains of f60,555 and proceeds from the sale of a

chapel amounting to f3,369,123 resulling in a sur[lus for the year of f3'414'343. The Directors

allocated 95% of the proceeds of that sa"le (t3,200,667) to a new Vision and Venture Fund - the

pii*urv aim of which is to support new church planting initiatives. The remaining 5% (f 168'456) was

used to establish an lncidental Projects Fund, the purpose of which is to support miscellaneous church

projects.

principal funding sources have been donations from supporting churches and personal members, and

interest and dividends arising from the Corporation's investments. A significant proportion of the

Corporation's income and exfienditure relates to the Gift Aid Scheme under which donors choose to

support the ministry of particular churches or other charitable activities that are in furtherance of the

aims and objectives oi t6u Corporation. During the year income amounted to f316'870 (2016:

L44S,O4O) rnd disbursements to f31 5,574 (2016: e+aS,ZOS; The reduction in the figures was due to

various individual supporters choosing to aliocate their giving directly to churches of their choice The

income yietd achieved on the Corp&ation's portfolio of investments was 3.1% against a target of

3 Sok, and the total return achieved was 6.0% against the benchmark of 6'6%'

The Corporation does not commit itself to supporting projects beyond the limits of funds that are

available, and therefore the Directors confirm that the assets in each of the funds are sufficient to

enable the Corporation to meet its obligations under those funds as they fall due. The financial

position as at 3.1 December 20i7 was considered satisfactory for the purposes of the continuing work

of the Corporation.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Following a period of considerable advance in the ministry of the Corporation, with a number of

initiativei underway but not yet completed, the Directors decided that a period of consolidation was

necessary before further initiatives were considered. They adopted a Strategic Plan entitled

"Consolidating our Position" to ensure that existing initiatives are completed satisfactorily and that

future opportunities are seized when the time is right and this will continue io influence decision-

making in the forthcoming year. The new Vision and Venture and lncidental Projects Funds (see

"Finanlial Review") will aiso create new opportunities for establishing new churches or supporting

those that are weak.
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INVESTMENTS
The Corporation,s Articles of Association authorise the Directors to invest funds not immediately

required for its purposes in such investments ,t *uy for the time being be prescribed by law' All such

funds are invesied in the Grace Baptist 
-ir*t 

ctrporation common lnvestment Fund, which is

managed by Fund Managers, Quilter Cheviot firituO, to achieve a robust income yield coupled with

longterm capital growtrr" as an inflationary hedge. lnvestment performance is governed by the

Trustees' acceptance of a cautious to moderate level of risk and their adoption of an ethical stance

that prevents investment in sectorr .ouuring alcohol, gambling, pornography, tobacco and credit

institutionsthatapplyextortionateandexorbitantlendingprinciples.

The Trustees and Fund Managers have agreed a target asset allocation of fixed interest stocks' gilts

and corporate bonds (55%), equities and structured investments (35%), and property (10%) that is

designed to achieve tf.1"." ir'Uj"i,tives. ln the absence of a suitable standard benchmark that equates

to the requirements oitn" Coiporation, the Trustees and Fund Managers have formulated a specialist

benchmark against which the performance of the fund is to be monitored' The income yield achieved

on the corporation's portfolio of investments was 3.1% against a target ol35%, and the total return

achieved was 6.0% against the benchmart< of O.Oy". Your ittention is drawn to the financial review'

TRUST FUNDS
The corporation acts as a Trustee for a range o-f small.charities and charitable funds under the terms

of Charity Commission schemes, trust deedi wills or other instruments' The objects of these trusts fall

within the chief objective of the corporation and further details are given on pages 47 lo 49' The

Receipts and Payments Account on page 47 is a consolidated summary of the accounts of the

charitable trusis that are listed on pages 48 and 49. Separate accounts are maintained for each of the

trusts and returns are made to tre crrarity commission. where appropriate The corporation

administers the funds of the trusts by inu"ttrg the capital in the Grace Baptist Trust corporation

Common lnvestment Fund, and in other authorisld investments. The funds of the trusts are kept apart

from those of the corporation by means of separate accounting records' bank accounts' and

investments. lnvestmlnt in the Common lnvestment Fund is on a unitlsed basis'

FUNDRAISING
TheCorporationdoesnotengageinfundraisingactivities.

RISK ASSESSMENT
The Directors review the risks to which the corporation is exposed on 

_3n. 
annual basis and they

confirm that systems are in place to manage the risks that have been identified'

The principal risks facing the Corporation are:

.ThelackofvoluntarydonationstofinancetheCorporation,soperatingcosts'owingtothe
professionat nature of tt']u 

"erri"J, 
ptoua"a to the- churches most church members find it

difficult to identify the benefits rratlie provided and are therefore not inclined to support the

work.Areasonablelevelofreservesismaintainedtomitigatethisrisk"
. A lack of comprehensive internal control systems owinglo there. being only two members of

staff in the office. All the financial controts t'hat would bJexpected. ar9. in place, and a member

of the Board of Directors, who is a Chartered Accountant, visits the office to inspect the

financial .u"orJ. on , 1.uguiu, basis. These controls are reviewed annually'

. The loss of the chief Executive. The risk has been mitigated by lle,appointment 
of a Personal

Assistant to work closely witfr frim, anO Oy tf'u ntlylsi-Jn of medical insurance to facilitate the

provisionofprompttreatmentintheeventofadebilitatingillness.
. The total loss of the office and office records through a malor disaster whilst the probability of

thisriskisminimal,itseffectwouldbeverySevere-Thisriskhasbeenmltigatedbythe
formulationofadisasterrecoveryplan,whichisreviewedannually.
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RESERVES POLICY
The total funds held by the Corporation at the year-end amounted to f5,363,128 of which f219,675
represented Endowment Funds and f409,629 which represented Restricted Funds which may only be
spent in accordance with the wishes of the donors. Your attention is drawn to notes 19 and 26.3.

Designated Funds comprise unrestricted funds received by the Corporation following the disposal of
redundant chapels" There are three sub-classifications within Designated Funds. The Support Fund
has been set aside by the directors in order to provide support to churches that are undertaking
significant maintenance projects and to support the ministry of the Corporation, as necessary. This
stood at t1,230,061 at the year-end and this is not considered to be excessive in view of the
possibilities that could arise for utilising these funds in the future. The Vision and Venture Fund
(primarily designated for church planting projects) amounted to f3,066,314 and will be utilised as
opportunities arise. By their nature these will be long term projects as it may take between five and ten
years for a new church to become fully self-supporting. The lncidental Projects Fund (used to support
miscellaneous projects as they arise) stood atf172,913.

As stated in note 26.1 it is the desire of the directors that the costs of running the Corporation will be
met out of membership subscriptions, voluntary donations, professional services and investment
income arising from General Fund reserves. The income arising from these sources is volatile and
currently falls significantly short of the sum required. Efforts are being made to increase the level of
income but at present the directors consider that a level of reserves must be maintained that is
sufficient to cover such deficits in order to sustain the work, not only in the immediate future but also
for several years ahead.

The Directors review the situation on an annual basis and at the last review, conducted in December
2017, considered that the remaining free reserves, which amounted to t264,536 at the year-end, must
be maintained at their current level. They consider that, in the event of a sudden and substantial fall in
the Corporation's income, the sum of approximately t250,000 is required to cover two years'
expenditure to enable all projects in hand to be completed, to enable the considerable number of
trusteeships of properties and Trust Funds currently held by the Corporation to be transferred to
another Trust Corporation, and to enable alternative arrangements to be put in place for the
continuance of the wide range of support ministries currently being undertaken by the Corporation.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN FIXED ASSETS
During the year. ihe sum ol f2,872,287 (arising from the receipt of the sales proceeds of the chapel in
Brighton) was invested in the Grace Baptist Trust Corporation Common lnvestment Fund.

PUBLIC BENEFIT
The Directors have considered the guidance published by the Charity Commission on the provision of
public benefit. They confirm that the chief objective of the Corporation is the advancement of the
Christian religion (which is a charitable purpose under law) and that the Corporation provides public
benefit by offering professional and trustee services - including the provision of advice and information
- free of charge to Particular Baptist Churches practising Strict Communion. Grants and loans are also
made available to such churches. Additionally, grants are paid from various Endowment Funds to the
members of those churches where they qualify under the terms of the trusts of the funds.

REMUNERATION POLICY
It is the policy of the Directors to remunerate staff at a level which recognises the Biblical principle that
the labourer is worthy of his hire. Where it is appropriate to do so, the Board determines the ievel of
salaries by reference to the "going rate for the job". Where there is no meaningful comparison - and
specifically so far as the Chief Executive is concerned - Board Members are g-uided by reference to
the salary that an employee might command in the open market. Alongside iliis, and in both cases,
due consideration is given to the level of stipends that churches served by the Corporation are able topay and the financial resources that are available within the Corporation. Salaries are reviewed on anannual basis, either at an officers' Meetinq or by the Executive committee and a recommendation issubmitted to the Board of Directors for coniideraiion at their meeting in December.
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PROFESSIONAL ADVISORS:

AUDITORS INSURANCE BROKERS
Brewers Chartered Accountants Bluefin
Bourne House 33-35 Woodthorpe Road
Queen Street Ashford
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Grace Baptist Trust Corporation (the 'charitable company') for

the year ended 31 Decemb er 2017 which comprise the statement of financial aciivities, summary income

and expenditure account, the balance sheet and cashflow statement and notes to the financial statements'

including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been

apptied in their preparatiSn is applicable law and United Kingdom Accor"tnting Standards, including

Financiat Reporting Standard tOZ ihe Financiat Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of

tretand (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3

of part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the

charitable company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and

for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to

anyone othei than the charitable company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit

work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

ln our opinion, the financial siatements.
. giveatrueandfairviewof thestateof thecharitablecompany'saffairsasat3l December2017

ind of iis incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure,

for ihe year then ended;
. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice; and
. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing (UK) (lSAs (UK)) and

applicable Iaw. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's

responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the

charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the

financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the lSAs (UK) require us

to report to you where.
. the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial

statements is not aPProPriate; or
. the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties

that may cast significant doubt about the company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern

basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial

statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information

included in the Chairman's and Director's report other than the financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon. ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the

financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. lf we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent materialmisstatements, we are required
to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information" lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is

a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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opinions on other matters prescribed by the companies Act 2006

ln our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the trustees' report for the financial year for which the financial statements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

. the trustees' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements'

Matters on which u/e are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the'charitable company and its environment obtained

in the course of the audit, ive have not identified material misstatements in the trustees' report'

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006

requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been

received from branches not visited by us; or
. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit or

. ihe trustees' were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small

companies regime take advantage olthe smallcompanies' exemptions in preparing the trustees'

reportandfromtherequirementtoprepareastrategicreport.

Responsibilities of trustees
As explained more fully in the trustees' responsibilities statement set out on page 4 the trustees (who are

also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for.the

preparation of the financial statements and ior being iatisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for

such internal control as the trustees determine ii necessary to enable the preparation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error'

ln preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company's

ability to continue u. , going 
"on""rn, 

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

the going concern basii of lccounting unless ttie trusiees either intend to liquidate the charitable company

or tJcease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor,s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audiior's report that includes

our opinion Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit

conducted in accoroance with lSAs (UK) ilrill ,l*uyu detect a material misstatement when it exists'

Misstatements can arise from fraud or erroiand are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting council's website at trttps:llwww.frc.or ' This description

forms rt of our auditor's report

nnoXsvtitton, S€rutoB -ry*toay A.lo ffo€,
#oe. AN'5 o'N BeH'4tf of
ereileri Chartered Accountants, Slffc,cToet As ofiae

Bourne House
Queen Street
Gomshall
Surrey
GUs gLY

5 March 2018
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Unrestricted
Funds

General

Notes S

Unrestricted Restricted
Funds Funds

Designated

ct

Endowment
Funds

t

118

118

Total Total
Funds Funds
2A17 2016

sf

54,836 58,473

339,383 458,654

121,618 38,755

39'1,043 3,369,123

906,880 3,925,005

702,952 571,217

571.217

Income and Endowments from:

Donations and Legacies

Charitable Activities

lnvestments

Other

Total 4

Expenditure on:

Charitable Activities

Total

Gains on lnvestments

Net lncome / (Expenditure)

Transfers between Funds

Net Movement in Funds

Reconciliation of Funds:

Total Funds brought forward
as at I January 2017

Total Funds carried forward
as at 31 December 2017

34,1 06 391 ,316 481.340

125,647 253,037 324,268

8,575

16,584

8,947

125.647

6,109

21,486

5,929

106,559

257,342

253.O37

89,360

227,639

(80,000)

u?,6N

24,657

316,870

6,112

133,701

19

(85,432)

86,340

908

157,072

(6,340)

150,?n

4,684 100,153 60,555

304,081 3AM,U34,802

4,802 304"081 3AM.343

263,628 4,321,649 258,897 214,873 5,059,047 1,644,704

19 264,536 4.469,288 409,629 219.675 5,363,128 5,059,047

Your attention is drawn to note 31 showing comparative figures for the previous year
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

SUMMARY INGOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DEGEMBER 2017

Total lncome

Total Expenditure

Surplus on Disposal of lnvestments

Surplus on OrdinarY Activities

Net lncome for the Year

Notes
2017
t

906,762

7A:2.952

203,810

.--:

203,810

2016
€

3,924,882

571,217

3,353,665

20 3,353,665

203,810 3,353,665

The summary tncome and Expenditure Accouni is derived from the statement of Financial Activities

on prg* 12 which, togetherwiifr tfre notes to the accounts on pages 16 to 34, provide full information

on i6Jmou"ments Ouiing the year on all the funds of the Corporation'
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017
ff

2016
f

Fixed Assets:
Tangible Assets

lnvestments

Total Fixed Assets

Current Assets:
Debtors (falling due after one year)
Debtors (falling due within one year)

Cash at Bank and in Hand

Total Current Assets

Liabilities:
Creditors (falling due within one year)

Net Current Assets

Total Assets less Current Liabilities

Total Net Assets

Notes

21

22

44,500
10,087
54,587

1,156,797

1,211,384

(8,814)

4,469,288
264,536

4,160,558

4J60"55S

1,202,570

5,363,128

5,363,128

219,675

409,629

53,000
3,402.445
3,455,445

424,147

3,879,592

(8,545)

4,321,649
263,628

1,188,000

1J 88,'000

3,871,047

5,059,047

5,059,047

214,873

258,897

23
)?

24

25

The Funds of the Charity:

Endowment Funds

Restricted lncome Funds

Unrestricted Funds:

Designated Funds
General Funds

Total Unrestricted Funds

Total Charity Funds 26

These financial statements have been prepared
of the Companies Act 2006 relating to small
FRS 102. The Company is limited by guarantee.

4,733,824 4,585,277

5,363,128 5,059,047

in accordance with the special provisions of Part 15
companies and the Financial Reporting Standard

The Regisiration Number of the Company is 592488.

The Balance sheet and the Accounts on pages 12 to 34 were approved by the
5 March 2018.

Board of Directors on

\
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Net lncome / (Expenditure) for the Year:

As per Statement of Financial Activities

Adjustments for:
Depreciation
(Gains) / Losses on lnvestments
Dividends and lnterest from lnvestments

Loans made in furtherance of objects

Repayment of loans made in furtherance of objects

(lncrease)/ Decrease in Debtors
lncrease / (Decrease) in Creditors

Cash FIow from Operating Activities

GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017
f

304,081

(1 00,1 5;)
(121,618)

(8,067)
39,456

3,369,469
269

3,179,356

3,483,437

121,618
(2.872,4A5)

(2,750,787)

732,650

424,147

1,156,797

90
1,156,707
1,156,797

201 6
t

3,414,343

1,940
(60,555)
(38,755)
(30,000)

12,750
(3,380,821)

(598)
(3,496,039)

(81,696)

38,755
(123)

38,632

(43,064)

467,211

424,147

106
424,041
4241_47_

Net Cash Provided by / (Used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flow from lnvesting Activities
Dividends and lnterest from lnvestments

Pu rchase of I nvestments
Net Cash Provided by / (Used in) lnvesting Activities

lncrease / (Decrease) during the Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at I January 2017

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31 December 2017

Analysis of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in Hand
Notice Deposits (less than three months)

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER2OlT

CONSTITUTION

1.1 The Grace Baptist Trust Corporation is registered in England as a Company limited by
guarantee and not having a share capital (Registration Number 592488). The Corporation
is also registered as a Charity (Registration Number 251675), and is recognised as a Trust
Corporation under section 3(i) of the Law of Property (Amendment) Act 1926 The
Corporation is governed by its Articles of Associaiion.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.3

Accounting Standards and Conventions
These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the histortc cost convention as
modified by the revaluation of investments, and are in accordance with the requirements of
the Corporation's Articles of Association (dated 24th April 2010), the Companies Act 2006,
the Charities Act 2011, the Statement of Recommended Practice "Accounting and
Reporting by Charities" (2015), and the Financial Reporting Standard "FRS 102". The
accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis as there is sufficient demand for
the services provided by the Corporation and sufficient resources to provide those
services. The Directors consider that there are no material uncertainties in this regard.

Public Benefit Entity
The Corporation is a public benefit entity as defined under FRS 102.

lncome
lncome is defined as the inflow of economic benefits arising from the activities undertaken
by the Corporation and is accounted for (gross) on a receivable basis. lncome is included
in the Statement of Financial Activities when the Corporation has acquired a right to the
resource, when it is probable that it will be received, and when its monetary value can be
measured with sufficient reliability.

Donations are accounted for upon receipt as the Corporation does not receive gifts that are
subject to performance related conditions Membership subscriptions are in the nature of
gifts and are therefore treated as donations.

Legacies are recognised when it is probable that the bequest will be received - once the
executors have confirmed: that the Corporation is entitled to the bequest; that probate has
been granted; that there are sufficient assets in the estate to pay the legacy; and once the
amount can be determined with sufficient reliability. When the amount cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability, the legacy is accounted for as a contingent asset.

lnterest Receivable from bank deposits and concessionary loans, and Dividends received
from the Grace Baptist Trust Corporation Common lnvestment Fund, are recognised on a
receivable basis at transaction value. lncome from Professional Services is accounted for
upon service delivery at transaction value"

lncome arising from assets held in a particular fund forms part of that fund with the
exception of income arising from Endowment Funds which is treated as Restricted lncome.

2.1

2.2
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2.4

GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

Expenditure
Expenditure is defined as the amount of resources that have been utilised on activities

undertaken by the Corporation and is accounted for gross (rnclusive of VAT which cannot

be recovereO) on an accruals basis. Expenditure rs included in the Statement of Financial

Activities once there is a legal or constructive obligation to make a payment to a third party,

wf,Ln it is probable that setilement will be required and the amount of the obligation can be

measured with sufficient reliability. Legal obligations arise under exchange transactions

that are contractual whereas constructive obligations arise under non-exchange

transactions such as grants.

Unconditional Grants are accounted for as expenditure when the offer of a specific

monetary amount is conveyed to the recipient and it is probable that the payment will be

made. Grants that are suOlect to conditions are accounted for as expenditure when the

conditions fall outside the iontrol of the Corporation and it is more likely than not that the

pryrunt will be made - in which case a tiabiiity for the full funding obligation is recognised'

lf an offer of a grant has been made, but payment becomes unlikely, albeit still possible'

the funding 
"ommitment 

is disclosed as a conttngent liability.

Classification of lncome and Expenditure
charitable Activities comprise the income and expenditure that relates directly to the

Charitable Activities of the Corporation. These include the advice given to churches and

their members, the administraiion of the gift aid scheme, the provision of trusteeship

services, the administration of trust funds, Lnd certain professional services for which a

charge is made.

Governance costs are those costs associated with the general management of the

Corporation as the trustees ensure compliance with constitutional and siatutory

requirements. They include the costs of prepaiing for, and holding, trustees' meetings' the

cost of preparing statutory accounts and annual returns, and the cost of the annual audit'

Shared Costs are those which contribute directly to more than one activity, such as staff

costs where members of staff are involved in more than one activity

support costs are those costs which facilitate a number of activities and which do not

change directly as a result of the activity undertaken, such as o{-fice and premises costs'

Govelnance Costs are treated as a category within Support Costs

Allocation of Costs
Expenditure that relates directly to one activity category is allocated in full to that activity'

Expenditure that relates to a number of activity categories is apportioned according to the

approximate amount of time spent on each activity, as follows:

staff Benefits are allocated. charitable Activities 90% and Governance costs 10%'

Fixed office costs are allocated: support costs 90% and Governance costs '10%'

Thereafter, Shared Costs (which contribute to more than one Charitable Actlvity) and

Support costs (which are not atiributable to one singe charitable Activity) are apportioned

according to the uppror,i;nui" amount of time spenion ea-ch activity, as follows: Advisory

Services"T0%, the iift niO Scheme lOoh, and Professional Services 20%'

2.5

2.6
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2.7

GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

Capitalisation of Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are recognised when an asset is controlled by the Corporation as a result of a
past transaction and it is probable ihat future economic benefits will accrue from it

Expenditure in excess of f500 on the acquisition and installation of fixed assets is

capitalised at historical cost. Fixed Assets received by way of gift are capitalised and

included in income at their fair value (that is, the amount at which they could be exchanged
by willing parties in an arm's length transaction).

Depreciation
Fixtures and Fittings, and Office Equipment
Provision for depreciation is made at rates calculated to write off the cost of the assets, less

any residual value, over their useful lives as follows.

2.8

Fixtures and Fittings
Office Equipment

Strarght Line Method
Straight Line Method

10 Years
3 Years

2.9

Whilst it is considered that the assets of the Corporation are unlikely to become impaired,
any asset that is found to have a net book value higher than its net realisable value or its
value in use is written down to the higher of those values.

Gains and Losses on Tangible Fixed Assets held for the Corporation's own use
A surplus arising on the disposal of fixed assets is included in the lncome and Expenditure
Account and the Statement of Financial Activities as a realised gain on the disposal of fixed
assets.

lmpairment losses or deficits arising on the disposal of fixed assets are included in the
lncome and Expenditure Account and the Statement of Financial Activities as an additional
depreciation charge.

Realised gains and losses arising on the disposal of fixed assets held in a particular fund
form part of that fund.

The Corporation does not have a policy of revaluing Tangible Fixed Assets.

2.10 Investments
Fixed Asset lnvestments represent investments in the Grace Baptist Trust Corporation
Common lnvestment Fund and are included in the Balance Sheet at fair value based on
the price of units. The surplus or deficit arising on revaluation is included in the Statement
of Financial Activities (under "Gains/Losses on lnvestments"). The surplus or deficit arising
on disposal is included in the Income and Expenditure Account and the Statement of
Financial Activities (under "Gains/Losses on lnvestments")"

Realised and unrealised gains and losses on investment assets held in a particular fund
form part of that fund.

2.11 Pension Scheme
The Corporation contributes to employees' Personal Pension Plans on a defined
contribution basis. Contributions are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities as
they become payable and allocated within Staff Benefits (see note 2"6).

2.12 Financial lnstruments
The Corporation's Financial Assets and Liabilities qualify as basic financral instruments and
as such are initially recognised at cash, transaction, or settlement vaiue. Subsequently,
Current Assets and Liabilities are measured at cash or settlement value and Fixed Asset
lnvestments are measured at fair value based on the price of units in the Grace Baptist
Trust Corporation Common lnvestment Fund.

lo



3.

GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

2.13 Debtors
Debtors are stated at their recoverable amount - that is, the amount that it is anticipated will
be received in respect of outstanding loans or other debts, or the amount that has been
paid in advance for goods and services,

Loans to churches (see note 23) are concessionary loans which are made to assist with
the acquisition, renovation, or maintenance of properties and are offered at rates of interesl
that are significantly below the market rate (usually "interest-free"). Loan repayments fall
due in either 20 or 40 equal instalments over a period of ten years and are guaranteed by
three individuals who act as guarantors. Loans are recognised at the amount initially leni,
with the carrying amount adjusted in subsequent years to reflect the repayments made.

2.14 Creditors
Credttors are recognised when the charity has a present legal or constructive obligation
arising from a past event that will probably result in the transfer of funds to a third party and
the amount due to settle the obligation can be measured or estimated with sufficient
reliability" Creditors are stated at their settlement amount - that is, the amount that it is
anticipated will be paid to settle the Corporation's liabilities.

2.15 Cash at Bank and in Hand
Cash at bank and in hand includes deposits with a short maturity of twelve months or less
from the date of opening the deposit.

2.16 Critical Accounting Judgements
ln the application of the accounting policies listed above, the Directors are required to
make judgements and assumptions about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Those assumptions, based on historical
experience and other factors considered to be relevant, are reviewed on an on-going basis.
In the view of the Directors there are no uncertainties that are likely to result in a material
adjusiment to the carrying amounts of those assets and liabilities in the forthcoming
financial year.

2.17 Presentation Currency
The accounts are denominated in e sterling and rounded to the nearest pound.

ANALYSIS OF SUPPORT COSTS

Governance Costs
Offrce Expenses
Property Expenses

Advisory
Services

€

15,107
10,460
7,912

33,479

Gift Aid
Scheme

f

2,158
1,494
1,131
4.783

Professional
Services

f

4,316
2,989
2,260
9,565

2017

f

21,581
14,943
1 1,303
47,827

they relate in

2016

t.

19,643
17 ,171
11,241
48,055

proportion to theSupport Costs are apportioned over
approximate amount of time spent on

Advisory Services
Gift Aid Scheme
Professional Services

the activity caiegories to which
each activity, as follows:

70%
10%
20%
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

4. INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS

Donations and Legacies
Subscriptions and Donations

Charitable Activities
cift Aid Scheme
Professional Services

lnvestments
tnterest Receivable
lnvestment lncome

Other lncoming Resources
Trust lncome

Total lncome and Endowments

5. EXPENDITURE

Charitable Activities
Advisory Services
Benevolent PaYments
Chapel Projects
Educational SuPPort
cift Aid Scheme
Ministry SuPPort
Professional Services

Total Expenditure

Unrestricted Designated Restricted Endowment
Funds Funds Funds Funds

NotesftE€

o

10

Unrestricted
Funds

Notes E

8,575

16,584
16,584

1,683
7.264
8,947

87,953

12,56;

25,129

Designated Restricted Endowment
funds Funds Funds

s8€

Total Total
Funds Funds
2017 2016
T,E

__11_0 54,836 58,473

316,870 445,040
22 513 13,6',14

339,383 458,654

2,517 1,626
1 19 101 37 ,129
121.618 38,755

391 ,043 3,369,'123

Total Total
Funds Funds
2017 2016
€€

87,953 84,547
6,750 5,300

251,631

328,139 450,343
1,944 6,871

26,535 24,156

571.217

7
a

21,486

5,929
5,929

294
106,265
106,559

257.342

24.657

316,870

316.B?0

540
5.572
6.112

133,701

6,750

315,574
1,944_

34,106 391,316 481,340 118 906.880 3,925,005

12
13
14
15
16
17
1B

251,631

1,406

125,647 253,O37 324.268

your attention is drawn to notes 32 and 33 showing comparative figures for the previous year

- 702.952

20



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

6. SUBSCRIPTIONS AND DONATIONS

Churches
lndividuals
Subscriptions
Charities

GIFT AID SCHEME

Donations

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Services Rendered in Connection with
Services Rendered in Connection with
Other Services Rendered

3'16,870 445,040

1,715
8,395
3,504

13,614

1,625
1

1,626

Trust Fund Administration 1,296
the Sale of Redundant Chapels 12,239

8,978
22,513

1,269
1,248
2,517

2017
f

7,003
4,075

785
42.973
54,836

2016
t

53,268
4,375

830

58,473

7.

8_

9. INTEREST RECEIVABLE

Bank Deposits
Other

10. INVESTMENT INCOME

Unlisted lnvestments - GBTC Common Investment Fund

11, TRUST INCOME

Proceeds from Sale of Redundant Chapels

119,101 37,129

391,043 3,369,123
391 ,043 3,369,123
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

Direct SuPPort 2017 2016

Costs Grants Costs
f€f€f

12, ADVISORY SERVICES

Providing Advice and

13, BENEVOLENT PAYMENTS

Grants are made to lndividuals

Benevolent Fund
Ministers'Aid Fund
The Pastors'fund

14. CHAPEL PROJECTS

Grants are made to Churches

Construction and
Maintenance Projects

Your attention is drawn to note 30.2

15. EDUCATIONAL SUPPORT

Grants are made to lndividuals

B A Warburton Memorial Fund

750 - ,uo 'o?

4,783 12,565 12,078
315.574 438.265

4.783 328,139 450.343

1,944 6,871

16, GIFT AID SCHEME

Administration
Disbursements

7,782
315,574
323,356

17, MINISTRY SUPPORT

Church Projects

18. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Services Rendered in Furtherance
of Charitable Objects 16,970

1.944
1,944

22

9,565 26,535 24.156



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

19. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS

Unrestricted Funds
General Fund

Designated Funds
Support Fund
Vision and Venture
lncidental Projects

Restricted Funds
Gift Aid Donations
General Building Fund
Halifax Building Fund
Halstead Fund
Lea Fund
Stoke Golding Fund
B A Warburton Memorial Fund
Ministers'Aid Fund
Benevolent Fund
The Pastors'Fund

Endowment Funds
B A Warburlon Memorial Fund
Ministers'Aid Fund
Benevolent Fund
The Pastors' Fund
Loan Fund

Balance
1.1.17

t

263,628

952,526
3,200,667

168,456
4,321,649

13,229

6,021
100

188,624
965

1,984
74

47,900
258.897

6,497
12,342

4 ara
169,205
25,000

214,873

lncome Expenditure Transfers lnvestment Balance
Gains/(Losses) 31.12.17

34,106

306,738
80,349
i 2ro

391.3'16

316,870
21,486

133,711
1,300

228
440
190
+oJ

53
A tr7o
V.U' J

481,340

e

6,"109

€

264.536125.647

1,406
250,000

1,631
253.037

315,574

1 ,6'16
,aoJZO

750

6,000
324,268

86,340

(46,30e)
(32,007)

(1,684)
(80,000)

(6,340)

18.512 1,230,061
67,305 3,066,3'14
3,543 172,913

8e,360 4AEg.Zgs

(6,340)

4.684tto

118
161
305

45
4,173

8,185
21,486

133,711
5,705

189,064
1 ,155
1 ,717

127
48,479

409,629

6,658
12,765

1,874
173,378
25,000

219,675

TOTAL FUNDS 595!p4Z 906.880 702,952 5.363,128

The transfer from Restricted Funds to the General Fund represents ihe fee charged by the Corporation for administering

the Gift Aid Scheme and the transfer from Designaled Funds to the General Fund represents an adjustment offsetting

the shortfall between General Fund income and expenditure. 1ok of the initial deposit in the Vision and Venture and

lncidental Projects Funds was transferred to the Support Fund in recognition of the costs incurred in connection with the
sale of the chapel in Brighton.

Designated Funds will be utilised as the need arises but church planting projects are, by their nature, long term projects

as it may take between five and ten years for a new church to become fully self-supporting.

The balance of Gift Aid Donations will be disbursed in accordance with the wishes of the donors in the forthcoming

financial year and the balances in the Halstead and Stoke Golding funds will be dispersed as the need arises to support

the ministry in those causes. Similarly, the amounts designated "Building Fund" will be utilised once suitable building

projects have been commenced. Grants will be made from the B A Warburton Memorial Fund, the Ministers' Aid Fund,

the Benevolent Fund, and the Pastors' Fund as the need arises.

Your attention is drawn to note 34 showing comparative figures for the previous year.
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

20. SURPLUS/(DEFIClr) oN oRDINARY ACTIVITIES

This is stated after crediting and charging the following amounts:

After Crediting:
lnterest Receivable
lnvestment lncome

After Charging:
Audit Fee
Depreciation
Pension Fund Contributions
Rent

21. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Cost
Balance as at 'l January 2017
Additions
Disposals
Balance as at 31 December 2017

Accum ulated Depreciation
Balance as at '1 January 2017
Charge for year
Eliminated in respect of Disposals
Balance as at 3'1 December 2017

Net Book Value as at 31 December 2017

Net Book Value as at 31 December 2016

Fixtures
Fittings and
Equipment

f
'1 5, BB9

(905)
14,984

15,889

(905)
14,984

2017
€

2.517
'1 19,101

6,730

9,445
8,846

2016
t

1,626
37,129

6,650
1,940
9,250
8,500

Total

t

15,889

(eo5)
14,984

15,889

(eo5)

14.984

24



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

22, FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Unlisted lnvestments:

At 1 January 2017
Additions
Disposals
I nvestment Gains/(Losses)
At 31 December 2017

2017
Cost

e

957,332
2,872,405

2016
Cost

f

957 ,209 1 ,188,000 1 ,127 ,322
123 2,872,405 123

'100,153 60,555
4 160.558 1 188,000

2017 2A16
Valuation Valuation

ff

64,000
1,933

3,389,512

The investments listed above are held primarily to provide an income and consist of units held

in the Grace Baptist Trust Corporation bommon lnvestment Fund, by the following funds:

3,829,737 957,332

10,087

197,163 253,750 247 ,641
591,509 768,997 750,486

- 2,795,97 B -

- 147,158
4,808 6,658 6,497

10,096 12,765 12,342

1,354 1,874 1,829
152,402 173,378 169,205
957 ,332 4,'160,558 1 ,188,000

General Fund 156,503 Units 197,163

Support Fund 474,288 Units 591,509

Vision and Venture 1,724,451 Unils 2,728,673
lncidental Projects 90,761 Units 143,614

B A Warburton Fund 4,106 Units 4,808

Ministers'Aid Fund 7,873 Units 10,214

Benevolent Fund 1 ,'156 Units 1,354

The Pastors'Fund '106,933 Units 152,402
3,829.737

23. DEBTORS

Loans to Churches 44 500

Prepayments and Accrued lncome
Other Debtors 

4frr,

24. CREDITORS

Due within one Year
Taxation and Social Security Costs
Accruals and Deferred lncome

Due after Due within 2017 2016

one year one Year f f

8,500 53,000
1,587 1,587

54 587 3,455,445

Loans to churches are concessionary loans which are made to assisi with the acquisition,

renovation, or maintenance of properties and are offered at rates of interest that are

significantly below the market rate (usually "interest-free"). Loan repayments fall due in either

2-d or 40 equal instalrnuni, over a period of ten years and are guaranteed by three individuals

who act as guarantors

2017
f

2016
f

1,821
6.724
8,545

1,969
6,845
8,814

)q



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

25. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

Unrestricted Funds
General Fund

Designated Funds
Support Fund
Vision and Venture
lncidental Projects

Restricted Funds
Gift Aid Donations
General Building Fund
Halifax Building Fund
Halstead Fund
Stoke Golding Fund
B A Warburton Memorial
Ministers'Aid Fund
Benevolent Fund
The Pastors' Fund

Endowment Funds
B A Warburton Memorial
Ministers'Aid Fund
Benevolent Fund
The Pastors' Fund
Loan Fund

Tangible
Fixed Assets lnvestments

ff

253,750

768,997
2,795,978

147.158
3,712,133

Current
Assets

f
'19,600

461,064
270,336
25,755

757,155

8,1 85
21,486

133,711
5,705

'189,064
'1 ,155
1 ,717

127
48.479

409,629

Current
Liabilities

f

(8.814)

Net
Assets

t

264,536

1,230,061
3,066,314

172.913
4,469,288

8,1 85
21,486

133,711
5,705

1 89,064
't ,155
1 ,717

127
48,479

409,629

6,658
12,765

1,874
173,378
25,000

219,675

Fund

Fund 6,658
12,765
1,874

173,378

194,675
25,000
25,000

TOTAL FUNDS 4,160,558 1,211,384 (8,814) 5 363,128

Your attention is drawn to note 35 showing comparative figures for the previous year.

26. DETAILS OF FUNDS

26.1 General Funds
General Funds are expendable at the discretion of the directors in furtherance of the
objects of the Corporation. lt is the desire of the directors that the costs of running the
Corporation will be met out of membership subscriptions, voluntary donations, professional
services and investment income arising from General Fund reserves.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

26. DETAILS OF FUNDS (Continued)

26.2 Designated Funds
Designated Funds comprlse unrestricted funds received by the Corporation following the

dispolal of redundant chapels. The Support Fund has been set aside by the directors in

order to provide support to churches that are undertaking significant maintenance projects

and are utilised as the need arises within individual local churches. ln addition a transfer is

made to the General Fund, as necessary. The Vision and Venture Fund was established

following the sale of the chapel in Brighton with the primary intention of supporting church-

planting projects. Such projects are, by their nature, long term as it may take between five

and ten yejrs for a new church to become fully self-supporting. Similarly, the lncidental
projects 

-Fund 
was established to support miscellaneous church projects. The funds will be

utilised as opportunities arise and so, for the reasons given, it is not possible to state when

it is anticipated that expenditure will be incurred'

26.3 Restricted Funds
Restricted Funds consist of income arising from the Corporation's Endowment Funds, (see

26.4), which is available for distribution, donations which have been given to support the

ministry of specific churches, and donations given under the Corporation's Gift Aid

Scheme. These donations are distributed to local churches, missionary societies, and other

charitable causes that further the aims of the Corporation in accordance with the

instructions of the donors.

26.4 Endowment Funds

The Pastors' Fund
The pastors,Fund was established in 2010 following the closure of the Strict Baptist Trust and

the Strict Baptist pension Fund under the provisions of section 74 of the Charities Act 1993' The

permaneni endowment of those charities has now become the permanent endowment of the

borporation. lncome arising from the Pastors' Fund Endowment is included in Restricted Funds

and is used to pay grants td Strict Baptist pastors, whether currently serving or retired.

B A Warburton Memorial Fund
The B A warburton Memorial Fund was established in 'l 963. Desiring to encourage the trairing

of men among Strict Baptist churches who planned io enter the Ministry, the members of the

Tabernacle Baptist Church, Brighton collected funds in memory of their late pastor, Benjamin A

Warburton. The objects of the Trust are:

. To render assistance to men who, following a definite and clear call by the Holy Spirit to the

ministry of the Gospel, seek to study and afply all diligence to the duty set before them

. To keep the fund separate and distinct from all other Corporatlon funds.

o To seek further donations in order to build up the capital, and to invest the same'

. To distribute the dividends in accordance with the purposes of the fund'

Ministers'Aid Fund
The Ministers'Aid Fund was established in'1917 to provide temporary

assistance to ministers connected with the strict and Particular Baptist

income is available for distribution. Under the terms of the trust:

or permanent financial
denomination and the

. ,,Ministers" are defined as pastors or ex pastors of such churches

period of three years or upwards regularly engaged in preaching

ihe denomination whether continuing to do so or not'
possessed of the sum
added to it, to be held

upon the trusts declared.
. All securities and income belonging to the fund are to be kept separate from other securities

and moneY.
. 5Ook of additions to the fund are to be added to capital, and 50% distributed as income.

)7

or persons
the Gospel

who have for a
in churches of

. The Trustees (Grace Baptist Trust Corporation) shall and will stand

representing the Fund, and any further sums of money that may be
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

DETAILS OF FUNDS (Continued)

26.4 Endowment Funds (Continued)

Benevolent Fund
The Benevolent Fund was established in 1923 for the temporary or permanent benefit of needy
persons connected with the Strict and Particular Baptist denomination whether such persons are
pastors, itinerant ministers, members or regular attendees at any church in the denomination or
the children of any such persons. Under the terms of the trust:
. The Trustees (Grace Baptist Trust Corporation) shall and wlll stand possessed of the sum

representing the Fund, and any further sums of money that may be added to it, to be held
upon the trusts declared

. All securities and income belonging to the fund are to be kept separate from other securities
and money.

. 50% of additions to the fund are to be added to capital, and 50% distributed as income

Loan Fund
The Loan Fund was established by a Trusi Deed dated '16 April 19'12 Under the terms of the
trust
. The Trustees (Grace Baptist Trust Corporation) are to stand possessed of One Thousand

Pounds representing the fund, and any further sums of money that may at any time come
into their hands as additions to the fund.

. The funds are to be advanced by way of loan to the Trustees or members of any Strict and
Particular Baptist Church in the United Kingdom for the purpose of acquiring or constructing
land or buildings for use in connection with Strict and Particular Baptist Churches.

. Any sums not immediately required are to be placed on deposit or invested in such
investments as Trustees are authorised to invest in by law.

. The income arising from any such investment is to be used for the General Purposes of the
Corporation.

. AII loans are to be lnterest-free and repaid overa perrod of not more than ten years.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
No members of the Board received any rernuneration orother benefits during the year (2016: t0).
Eight members claimed travelling expenses totalling L2,BB2 (2016'. Seven members claimed
t1,735)

27.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

28. EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

Total Payroll Costs comPrised:

Wages and Salaries
Employers'NlC
Other Benefits
Other Pension Costs

Key Management Personnel
Other Staff

2017
c

62,919
4,697
9,405
9,445

86,466

64,398
22,068
86,466

2016
f

62,324
3,310
5,922
9,250

BO 806

59,349
21,457
80,806

.Key Management personnel" is a term defining those individuals who have authority and

res[onsibilit"y for planning, directing and controlling ttre activities of the Corporation. Whilst this

definition includes the Diiectors, no member of the Board received any remuneration during the

year (2016: f0).

No employee received emoluments in excess of f60,000 in either year.

The average number of employees in the year was 2 (2016:2)

The Corporation contributed to two employee's Personal Pension Plans during the year (2016'2)

There were no outstanding contributions at the year end'

29. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

29.1 Non-cancellable Operating Leases

The following payments fall due under non-cancellable operating leases.

Expiring within 1 Year

Expiring within 2 - 5 Years

201 6
t

6,148

46,052

2017
f

29.2 Grant Funding

ln accordance with the Ultimate Trust of the Trust Deed governing the proceeds.from ihe sale of

providence Baptist chapel, slaithwaite, the funds have been committed for building work in
yorkshire - specificallt i;;, new hall for Grace Baptist Church, Halifax The funds amounting to

L|33,7i1 at the year-Lnd are invested in a Charities Official lnvestment Fund Deposit Account

(2016: t0).

)a
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(Continued)

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

30.1 Donations Received from Related Parties
Board of Directors
Key Management Personnel

30.2 Other Related Party Transactions

2017
f

201 6
t

755 675
70 70

825 745

A grant of f1,631 was paid from the Incidental Projects Fund to assist Jubilee Baptist
Church Occold with the cost of installing a PA system. One of the officers of the church,
MrR E Powell, is a Director.

A grant of f250,000 was patd from the Vision and Venture Fund to assist Cuckfield Baptist
Church with the cost of constructing their new chapel premises. One of the officers of the
church, Mr J N Broome, is a Director.

ln the 1960s, the members of Montpelier Place Baptist Church Brighton (the sales
proceeds of which have been used to establish the Vision and Venture Fund) had been
actively involved in supporting Cuckfield Baptist Church which had become very weak
numerically. That church has since grown to such an extent that an entirely new complex of
buildings has recently been constructed. ln view of the historical connection between the
two churches, the Directors considered that a significant grant should be allocated towards
this project. This was made possible by the unique circumstances of both churches
coinciding.

The Grace Baptist Trust Corporation is a corporate trustee of the above chapels. Since
both churches are Particular Baptist Churches practising Strict Communion, providing
financial support to them is a means of furthering the primary objective of the Corporation.

30
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(Continued)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITES (PREVIOUS YEAR)

Unrestricted Unrestricted Restricted
Funds Funds Funds

General Designated

€[E

Endowment Total
Funds Funds

2016

€€

lncome and Endowments from:

Donations and Legacies

Charitable Activities

lnvestments

Other

Total

Expenditure on:

Charitable Activities

Total

Gains on lnvestments

Net lncome / (ExPenditure)

Transfers between Funds

Net Movement in Funds

Reconciliation of Funds:

Total Funds brought forward
as at 1 JanuarY 2016

Total Funds carried forward
as at 31 December 2016

9,338

13,604

8,486

120.781

12,625

<ta,nal

97,633

10

23,457

3,369,123

38,259

3,430,849

(e0,000)

49,O12

445,O40

6,812

123 58,473

- 458,654

- 38,755

- 3,369,123

9,671 60,555

3AM,3439,794

31.428 3,392,590 500,864 123 3,925,005

120,781 450,436 571,217

459,439. __,,____: 571.217

50,428

(7,633)

20,905 3,340,849 42,795 9,794 3,414,343

242,723 980,800 216,102 205,079 1,644,704

293.628 4,321,649 258,897 214,873 5.059,047
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(Continued)

32. TNCOME AND ENDOWMENTS (PREVIOUS YEAR)

Unrestricted Designated
Funds Funds

f€

Restricted Endowment Total
Funds Funds Funds

2016
cfL

Donations and Legacies
Subscriptions and Donations

Charitable Activities
Gift Aid Scheme
Professional Services

lnvestments
lnterest Receivable
lnvestment lncome

Other lncoming Resources
Trust Income

Total lncome and Endowments

33. EXPENDTTURE (PREV|OUS YEAR)

31,428 3,392,590 500,864 123 3,925,005

Designated Restricted Endowment
Funds Funds Funds

€€€

Total
Funds
2016

g

5,30;

438,265
6,871

- 84,547
- 5,300

- 450,343
- 6,871
- 24,156

13,604 10
13,604 _ 10

746
7.740 23.457
8,486 23,457

445,040

445,040

880
5,932
6,812

445,040
13,614

458,654

1,626
37,129
38,755

Unrestricted
Funds

€

Charitable Activities
Advisory Services
Benevolent Payments
Educational Support
Gift Aid Scheme
Ministry Support
Professional Services

Total Expenditure

84,547_

12,O78

24fi;

120.781 - 450,436
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(Continued)

34. MOVEMENT lN FUNDS (PREVIOUS YEAR)

Unrestricted Funds
General Fund

Designated Funds
Support Fund
Vision and Venture
Incidental Projects

Restricted Funds
Gift Aid Donations
Halstead Fund
Lea Fund
Stoke Golding Fund
B A Warburton Memorial Fund
Ministers'Aid Fund
Benevolent Fund
The Pastors' Fund

Endowment Funds
B A Warburton Memorial Fund
Minisiers'Aid Fund
Benevolent Fund
The Pastors' Fund
Loan Fund

TOTAL FUNDS

Expenditure

€

120,781

Balance lncome
1.1.1 6

ft

Transfers lnvestment Balance
Gains/(Losses) 3'l-12.16

ttt

97,633

(90,000)

(90.000)

(7,633)

12.625 263,628

(7,633)

13,229
6,021

100
188,624

965
1,984

74
47,900

258,897

6,497
12,342
1,829

169,205
25.000

214.873

332
620

93
8,626

Y,O/ I

5,059,047

242,723

980,800

980,800

14,087
7,083

145,965
762

1,477
216

46,512
216.102

6,165
11,599

1,736
160,579
25,000

20s,o79

31,428

23,467
3,200,667

168,456
3,392,590

38,259 952,526
- 3,200,667

168,456
38,259 4,321.649

445,040 438,265
1,000 2,062
4,909 4,809

42,659
203
507
58 200

6,488 5,100
500,864 450,436

123

123

1,644.704 3,925.005 571,217
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(Continued)

35. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS (PREVIOUS YEAR)

Tangible Current
Fixed Assets lnvestments Assets

€f€

Unrestricted Funds
General Fund

Designated Funds
Support Fund
Vision and Venture

Restricted Funds
Gift Aid Donations
Halstead Fund
Lea Fund
Stoke Golding Fund
B A Warburton Memorial Fund
Ministers'Aid Fund
Benevolent Fund
The Pastors' Fund

Endowment Funds
B A Warburton Memofial Fund
Ministers'Aid Fund
Benevolent Fund
The Pastors' Fund
Loan Fund

TOTAL FUNDS

247,641 24.532

754,486

750,486

6,497
12,342
1,829

169,205

189,873

1J S8300

202,040
3,200,667

168,456
3,571,163

13,229
6,021

100
188,624

965
1,984

74
47,900

258,897

25.00;
25,000

Current
Liabilities

€

(8,545)

Net
Assets

f

263,628

952,526
3,200,667

168,456
4,321,649

13,229
6,021

100
188,624

965
1 ORA

t4
47,900

258,897

6,497
12,342
1,829

169,205
25,000

214,873

3.879,592 (8,545) 5.059,047
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

CONSTITUTION
The Common lnvestment Fund was establlshed by

27th August 1987

RESPONSIBILITY
The Trustees are responsible for the approval of

Fund Manager. The Trustees meet perrodically to

any policies required.

DECEMBER 2017

the lnvestment Strategy, which is agreed with the

review the management of the funds and to confirm

a Scheme of the Charity Commission dated

The Fund invests capital on behalf of the Corporation and other Churches and Trust Funds of which

the Corporation is a Trustee. The Directors of the Corporation act as Trustees of the Common

lnvestment Fund

MANAGEMENT
The Trustees have delegated the day-to-day management and administratron of the fund to Fund

Managers, Quilter Cheviot Limited.

STRUCTURE
The fund operates as a Unit Trust. The total fund is divided into units which are created or cancelled

on the receipt of new funds or the redemption of holdings. At 3'1 December 2017 units totalled

b,27g,27g (20't6: 3,655,701) and were valued alL1.62137292 per unit (20'16: L1.5823422'1), based on

the portfolio of investments"

INVESTMENT STRATEGY
Approximately 55% of the total units are held by permanently endowed trust funds that demand a high

level of income in the absence of any l.eaiistic opportunities for the utilisation of their capital.

Consequenly, the investment strategy of tt-,e fund is to achieve a robust income yield coupled wiih

Iong-term capital growth as an inflationary hedge. Investment performance is_governed by the

Tru-stees, acceptance of a cautious to moderate level of risk and their adoption of an ethical stance

that prevents investment in sectors covering alcohol, gambling, pornography, tobacco and credit

institutions that apply extortionate and exorbitant lending principles.

The Trustees and Fund Managers have agreed a target asset allocation of fixed interest stocks, gilts

and corporate bonds (SS%), Jquities and structured investments (35%), and property (10%) that is

designed to achieve ttrese oblectives. ln the absence of a suitable standard benchmark that equates

to thl requirements of the Coiporation, the Trustees and Fund Managers have formulated a specialist

benchmark against which the performance of the fund is to be monitored. The income yield achieved

on the Corpoiation's portfolio of investments was 3.1% against a target of 35%, and the total return

achieved was 6.0% against the benchmark of 6'6%.

AE



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

GOMMON INVESTMENT FUND

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE TRUSTEES
The Trustees of the Common Investment Fund are required by the Scheme of the Charity Commission
dated 27th August 1987, made under the Charities Act 1960, to prepare financial statements in

accordance with the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008. ln preparing the financial
statements the Trustees are required to:

. Select suitable accounting policies that are appropriate for the Fund and then apply them
consistently.

. Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

. Follow generally accepted accounting principles and applicable accounting standards,
subject to any material departure disclosed and explained in the financial statements.

. Follow the disclosure requirements of the Statement of Recommended Practice for Financial
Statements of Authorised Funds (2014).

. Prepare the financial statements on the basis that the Fund will continue in operation unless
it is inappropriate to presume this.

The Trustees are required to manage the Fund in accordance with the Scheme, maintain accounting
records and take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

On behalf of the Trustees

D W J Skull

K C WWiltshire
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INDEPENDENTAUDIToR,SREPoRTToTHETRUSTEESoF
GRACE BAPTTST TRUST CORPORATION COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Grace Baptist Trust Corporation Common lnvestment Fund

(the ,charity,) for the year ended 3'1 December 2017 which comprise the statement of total return and the

balance sheet and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United

Kingdom Accounting-Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting

sta'ndard appticabtiin the uK and Repubtic of lreland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice).

This report is made solely to the charity's trustees, as a body, in accordance with Section '144 of the

Charities Act 201t anO wittr regulations made under Section 154 of that Act. Our audit work has been

undertaken so that we might stJte to the charity's trustees those matters we are required to state to them

in an auditor's report and ior no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or

assume ,e=ponsibility to anyone othei than the charity and the charity's trustees as a body, for our audit

work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed'

ln our opinion, the financial statements:
. give a true and fair view of the state of the charity's affairs as at 31 December 2017 and of its

incoming resources and application of resources for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice; and
. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities Act 201 1.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing (UK) (lSAs (UK)) and

applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's

responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report" We are independent of the

charity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements

in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with these requirements. we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to rJport"in relpect of the following matters in relation to which the lSAs (UK) require us

to report to You where.
. the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial

statements is not aPProPriate; or
. the trustees have not disclosed in ihe financial statements any identified material uncertainties

that may cast significant doubt about the charity's ability to continue to adopt the going concern

basis of u""ouriing for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial

statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information

included in the report of the Trustees other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon"

Oui opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informaiion and, except to the extent

otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon ln

connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,

in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements

or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf we identify such

material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to delermine whether there

rs a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information'

lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact'

We have nothing to report in this regard.

4,7



Matters on which vve are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the foliowing matters in relation to which the Charities Act 2011
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

" the information given in the trustees' report is inconsistent in any material respect with the financial
statements; or

. sufficient accounting records have not been kept; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
c \,/ve have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees
As explained more fully in the trustees' responsibilities statement set out on page 36 the trustees are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charity's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charity or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with lSAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these frnancial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial ing Council's website at: https:l/www.frc.orq.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms r auditor's report

Bourne House
Queen Street
Gomshall
Surrey
GU5 gLY

5 March 201Q

Brewers Chartered Accountants is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212 of the Companies
Act 2006

JO



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017
Notes

Net Gains/(Losses) on
lnvestments during the Year

Gross lncome

Expenses

Net Income

Total Return for the Year

Distributions

2

e

4

217,B4A

'1,001

2,624,878

55,1 89

232,995

216,839

449,834

244,413

2017
E

5,784,570

2,569,689

205,421

178,788

'1,051

207,433

15,079

201 6

290,313

177,737

468,050

179,749

288,301

2016
€

5,303,9'15

192,354

288,301

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Unit Holders'
Funds from Investment Activities

Notes

Net Assets as at 1 JanuarY 2017

Movement due to the Creation
and Cancellation of Units

Amounts Received on Creation of Units

Amounts Paid on Cancellation of Units

Net Increase/(Decrease) ln Unit Holders'
Funds from lnvestment Activities

205,421

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS'FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Net Assets as at 31 December 2017 8,559.680 5,784,570



Portfolio of lnvestments

Current Assets
Debtors
Cash at Bank and in COIF

Current Liabilities
Creditors

Net Current Assets

Net Assets

GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Notes
2017

f

8,538,070

22,468
147

22,615

(1.005r)

21,610

8,559,680

8

o

50;041
148

50,1 89

(1,005)

20f6
€

5,735,386

49,184

5,784,570

5.794,570Unit Holders' Funds 8,559,680

The Financial Statements on pages 39-45 were approved by the Trustees on 5 March 2018.

D W J Skull

K C WWiltshire

-yt {Tauvrl

e*-
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1.

GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 AccountingConventions
These financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention, as

modified by the revaluation of investments, and are in accordance with the Charities

(Accounts ind Reports) Regulations 2008 and the Statement of Recommended Practice

ior Financial Statements of Authorised Funds (2014)'

1.2 Dividends and Other lncome
Dividends on ordinary stocks are credited to lncome

Government Stocks, Convertible Loan Stocks, and Bank

basis.

Distribution PolicY
The Fund distributes, in full, the income that is accumulated

lnvestment Valuation
lnvestments are valued at the mid-market valuation at

accounting date.

NET GAINS ON INVESTMENTS
The Net Gains/(Losses) on lnvestments during the year comprise'

Proceeds from sale of investments sold during the year

Original cost of investments sold during the year

Gains/(Losses) realised on investments sold during the year

Net Losses/(Gains) thereon already recognised in previous years

Net unrealised appreciation for the year

Fund Management ExPenses
Net Gains/(Losses) on lnvestments

GROSS INCOME

UK Equities
UK Fixed lnterest
Overseas Equities
Overseas Fixed lnterest
Interest on DePosits

when receivable. lnterest on

Deposits is accrued on a dailY

between distribution dates.

the close of business on the

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Taxation
The Fund is exempt from UK lncome and Capital Gains Tax due to its charitable status

Fund Management ExPenses
Fund Manag-ement Expenses are charged against the capital value of the Fund

2.

3.

2017
f

2,071 ,726
1,857,809

213,917
(159,240)

54,677
228,395
283,072

50,077
232,995

2017
f

123,596
72,599
10,350
10,513

aaa

201 6
t

672,694
660,1 1 7

12,577
(13,031)

(454)
327,907
327,453

37.140
290,313

201 6
t

1 05,373
47,5Bs

B,659
16,358

6lJ

1?BJBB

41
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5. DISTRIBUTIONS
Distributions take account of income received on the creation of units and income deducted on
the cancellation of units.

Pence per Unit 2017 2016

4. EXPENSES

Audit Fee
Bank Charges

20 May 2017
30 November 2017

6. DEBTORS

Amounts due from Fund Managers
Accrued lncome

7. CASH AT BANK AND IN COIF

Cash at Bank (lncome Funds)

8. CREDITORS

Accruals

GRAGE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

1.4841139
3" 1 573059

2017
f

918
83

1,001

t

78,499
165,914
244.413

2017
E

22,287
181

22,468

2417
I

147

2017
t

1,005

2016
f

1,000
51

1,051"

t
81,271
98,478

179.749

2016
t

49,804
. 237

50,041

2016
t
148

2416
f

1,005
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER2OlT

L

(Continued)

INCOME RESERVE
The income reserve represents the income

lncome Reserve as at 1 JanuarY 2017

Transfer to/(from) lncome Reserve

lncome Reserve as at 31 December 2017

TRUSTEES
The Trustees received no remuneration or expenses'

received by the Fund since the last distribution date'

2017
f

49,184
{27,574)
21,610

2016
€

51 ,1 96
(2,012)
49,184

10.

PURCHASES

I 16,000
'170,000

104,009
63,800

122,000
160,000
20,900

195,000
480,000

SALES

2'15,000
115 000
46,000

COST

210,527
162,648
112,974
846,087
122,084
198,560
207,055
212,464
199,200

2,271.599

PROCEEDS

249,903
107,215
165.402
522,520

SUMMARYoFSIGNIFICANTCHANGESINTHEPoRTFoLIo

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Allianz Global lnvestors UK Gilt Yield I lnc

AXA lnvestment Managers US Short Duration High Yield

Henderson lnvestment Funds UK Property

lshares li Core UK Gilts Ucits Etf

BNY Mellon Global Funds
Fl L I nvestment Services
F & C Fund Management ProPertY

Kames CaPital ProPertY
M & G Securities CorPorate Bond

Aberdeen Fund Managers ProPertY

London Utm UK Govt Bond

Henderson lnvestment UK ProPertY
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

PORTFOLIO STATEMENT AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Market Value
as at 31.12.17

tt

% of total
Portfolio

UNITED KINGDOM

UK FIXED INTEREST

Government Stock
t130,000 Treasury 4.75% Stock 2020
t'I35,000 Treasury 3.75% Gilt 2020
t170,000 Treasury 4% cil|2022

Other
372,000 Allianz Global lnvestors UK Gilt Yield
745,000 Royal London Utm UK Gov Bond
106,000 Ishares li Core UK Gilts Ucits Etf

6,350 lshares li I/L Gilts Ucits Etf
160,000 FIL lnvestment Services
480,000 M&GSecurities

UK EQUITIES
16,300 BP

B 700 Royal Dutch Shett
2]00 Rio Tinto
1,700 Unilever
6,300 Glaxosmithkline

34,600 Barclays
19,300 HSBC
9,000 Aviva
4,000 Prudential
3,600 BHP Billiton

14,900 Smith (DS)
3,000 Compass Group
2,100 Astrazeneca
4,700 Experian
7,700 BT Group
1,900 Persimmon
'1,300 Reckitt Benckiser Group

143,000 Lloyds
7,900 British Land Company
1,800 cRH
4,400 Halma
7,000 Sophos Group
2,900 Relx
2,000 Accesso Technology Group
7,300 Nex Group
5,400 RPC Group

14,500 Auto Trader Group
3,BOO IMI

13,800 Tesco
5,300 Intermediate Capital Group
1,700 Shire
3,'100 Smiths Group

'18,100 Legal& General Group
13,500 B& M European Vatue Retail
5,200 3iGroup

28,700 Londonmetric property
25,900 Taylor Wimpey
2,300 Ashtead Group

144,121
148,375
195,881

488,377

696,793
694,489

1,399,200
114,471
200,480
201.648

3,307,081

85,200
218,240

82,782
70,134
83,318
70,273

148,012
45,585
76,220
54,810
77.108
48,000

107,541
76,892
20,921
52,022
89,947
97,326
54,629
47,826
55,440
39,900
50,43'l
39,250
44,275
47,601
51,1 56
50,654
28,877
60,738
66,300
46,190
49,467
57,1 86
47,502
53,382
53,458
45,816

2,494,409

39

44
29



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

PORTFOLIO STATEMENT AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

UNITED KINGDOM (continued)

CASH BALANCES
Citi Quilter lnvestment Managers
COIF Charities DePosit Fund

EUROPE

EQUITIES
51,000 BlackRock Continental European lncome

102,000 Schroder Unit Trusts European
650 Wells Fargo (Lux)Worldwide Fund

USA

EQUITIES
8,200 KBI Dividend Plus North American Equity A Inc

122,000 BNY Mellon Global Funds

FAR EAST

EQUITIES
12,000 Hermes lnvestment Management
48,000 Baillie Gifford & Co

GLOBAL

PROPERTY FUNDS
3'15,000 Charities ProPertY Fund
195,000 Kames CaPital ProPertY
20,900 F &C Fund Management Property

FIXED INTEREST
'17,300 Pimco Global lnvestment Grade Credit Hgd lnstl

250,000 AXA lnvestment Managers Short Duration High Yield

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS

NET CURRENT ASSETS

NET ASSETS

30,755
340,711

81,957
79,580
60,658

129,765
125,611

26,633
64,224

387,860
215,553
222,257

240,989
241,650

371,466
6,661,333

222,195

255,376

90,857

825.670

482,639

8,538,070

21,610

Market Value
as at 31 .12.17

% of total
Portfolio

5

100

100

4
78

10

/ltr

8,559,680
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

TRUST FUND RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Receipts

Various Trusts

Payments

Various Trusts

Surplus/(Deficit) of Receipts over Payments

Balances brought forward as at 1 January 2017

Balances carried forward as at 31 December 2017

lnvestments held on behalf of various trusts

lnierest in Grace BaptistTrust Corporation Common lnvestment Fund

2017
f

381,097

383,932

(2,835)

689,230

2016
t

433,052

354,037

79,015

610,215

686,395 689,230

The Corporation acts as a Trustee for the charitable trusts that are listed on pages 48 and 49 and the

Receipts and payments Account above is a consolidated summary of the accounts. of these trusts'

The accounts include both Capital and Revenue amounts. Separate accounts are maintained for each

of the trusts and returns are made to the Charity Commission where appropriate. The Receipts and

payments Account and the investments held on behalf of the Trusts (see below) are kept separaie

from those of the Corporation and are not included in the accounts set out on pages 12 to 34'

L4,399,122

Further information about churches that we have been able to assist with support from the Trust

Funds we administer is given on our website and paper copies are available, on request"
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GRAGE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

TRUST FUNDS

The following Chapel Trusts are administered by Order of the Charity Commission or by the terms of
Trust Deeds Churches qualified to benefit under the terms of the Trusts should communicate with the
Chief Executive.

Dividends re the. -

ALTON TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in Hampshire, and adjoining counties of West
and East Sussex, Surrey and Wiltshire.

AMERSHAM TRUST to Strict Baptist Chapels in Buckinghamshire.

BLACKBURN TRUST to strict and Particular Baptist chapels in Lancashire.

BURNLEY TRUST to Strict Baptisi Chapels within a radius of 40 miles from Burnley.

COBHAM TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels within a radius of '12 miles of Cobham.

CROYDON TRUST towards the upkeep, extension or improvement of the buildings of Strict and
Particular Baptist Churches.

EDENBRIDGE TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in Kent, Surrey, East and West Sussex

EPPING TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in Essex within a radius of 25 miles of
Epping.

FENLAND CHURCHES TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in Cambridgeshire, Norfolk
and Lincolnshire

FLECKNEY TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels with a preference for those in
Leicestershire

GLOUCESTERSHIRE COMBINED CHARITIES to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in the County
of Gloucestershire and adjoining counties.

HORLEY (LEE STREET) TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in Surrey, Hampshire, West
and East Sussex.

HORNSEY RlsE TRUST to strict Baptisi chapels in Middtesex and London.

IVINGHOE TRUST to Particular Baptist Chapels in the Counties of Bedfordshire, Buckinghamshire
Hertfordshire and Northamptonsh ire.

LEE CLUMP TRUST to Strict Baptist Chapels within 10 miles of the former Providence Baptist
Chapelat Lee Clump.

MAIDSTONE (KING STREET)TRUST to Strict Baptist Chapels in the County of Kent.

MAIDSTONE (MOTE ROAD) TRUST to Strict Baptist Chapels within 30 mites of Maidstone.

MARDEN TRUST to Strict and particular Baptist Chapels in Kent.

RUSHDEN TRUST to strict Baptist chapels within 30 miles of Rushden.

SLEAFORD TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in Lincolnshire, and adjoining Counties of
Cambridgeshire, Leicestershire and Nottinghamshire.

SOUTHBOROUGH TRUST to Strict Baptist Chapets in Kent.

TONBRIDGE TRUST to strict and particutar Baptist chapels in Kent.



GRAGE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

rRUST FUNDS

(Continued)

UPPINGHAM TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels at Uppingham, Leicestershire and the

surrounding area"

WADDESDON HILL TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in the counties of

Buckinghamshire, Bedfordshire and Hertfordshire.

WARBLETON TRUST to Particular Baptist Chapels with a preference for those in East Sussex.

WARRINGTON TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in the counties of Cheshire,

Merseyside, Greater Manchester, Lancashire, Cumbria and West Yorkshire.

WTLTSHIRE TRUST to any Strict and Particular Baptist Chapel in the County of Wiltshire.

WTSBECH MANSE TRUST for the benefit of chapels of the Strict Baptist denomination.

WRIGHT MEMORIAL to Particular Baptist churches in Lancashire and West Yorkshire.

Trust Funds relating to the following places or persons are administered as directed by the Charity

Commission, or by the terms of trust deeds or wills: Balham, Bedworth Manse, Bermondsey Manse,

Brentford, Broadstairs, Brockham, Brockley, Brockley Graveyard, Devizes, Grundisburgh Manse,

Haworth - Hartley Trust, Haworth Manse, lpswich Manse, Laxfield, Marden, Margate, Meopham

Manse, Norris Legacy, Otley, Portsmouth Manse, Preston Settlement, Ramsey, Rattlesden Manse, St.

Albans, Salhouse, bnodland, Stoke Golding, Thornhill Manse, Two Waters, Wattisham - Chaplin

Legacy, Wellingborough Manse, Wetherden Manse, Wimbledon.
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

BASIS OF FAITH

1. The verbal inspiration of the Holy Scriptures of the Old and New Testaments and that they are
the sole, supreme, and all-suffrcient authority in every matter of Christian faith and practice.

2 One living and only true God, subsisting in the Trinity of Three co-equal and co-eternal
Persons - the Father, the Son, and the Holy Spirit; all infinite without beginning; the Father
neither begotten nor proceeding; the Son eternally begotten of the Father; the Holy Spirit
eternally proceeding from the Father and the Son.

3. The Deity, eternal Sonship, and spotless humanity of the Lord Jesus Christ; His virgin birth,

crucifixion, death, and burial; His physical resurrection, and ascension into heaven.

4 The personal, eternal, and unconditionai election of the Church in Christ unto everlasting
salvation.

5. The Fall of mankind in Adam their federal head whose transgression is imputed to them, and

from whom they derive a corrupt nature, thereby rendering them both unable and unwilling to

meet the claims of God's righteous and holy law.

6. That though all men are rendered spiritually impotent by the Fall, they are none the less

accountable to God for their sins, and they shall answer for the same in the day of judgement

except they be granted repentance unto eternal life.

7 . The special, particular, and eternal redemption from all sin, and the penal consequence
thereof, of all God's elect, through the substitutionary sacrifice of the Lord Jesus Christ.

B. The eternal and everlasting justificaiion through faith of the elect and redeemed Church, by

the blood and imputed righteousness of Christ, irrespective of any moral or spiritual works

done by them either before or after regeneration.

g. The effectual calling of all the redeemed by the invincible power and grace of the Holy Spirit,

according to the counsel of God's will, involving their regeneration and sanctification by the

direct agency of the Holy Spirit, through which the saints grow in grace perfectrng holiness in

the fear of the Lord.

10. The grace of faith whereby the elect are enabled io believe to the saving of their souls is the

gift oi God, and the work of the Holy Spirit in thelr hearts, Who convinces them of sin, works in

ihem repentance unto life, and enables them to look to, receive, and rest upon the Lord Jesus

Christ alone for salvation.

11 The final perseverance in the ways of God of all those who have been chosen by the Father,

redeemed by the Son, and regenerated by the Holy Spirit, so that they shall never perish, but

have eternal life.

12 The second coming of the Lord Jesus Christ, the resurrection of the dead, boih of ihe just and

the unjust, when the wicked will go away into everlasting punishment and the rlghieous into

life eternal.

.13. The duty and privilege of all true believers to profess their repentance towards God and faith

in the Lord Jesus Christ, by being baptized, that is, immersed in water, in the name of the

Father, and of the Son, anC of the Holy Spirit, prior to becoming members of a Christian

Church or partaking of the Lord's Supper.

14. The preaching of the Gospel to every creature as a divine command and solemn duty.

i5 The necessity of a believer's life being consistent with the profession he makes.

16 The congregational order of the Churches"

JI



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

RULES

(EXTRACTED FROM THE ARTIGLES OF ASSOCIATION)

Every member of the Corporation shall be a member of one of the following classes, namely. -

(a) Ordinary Members. That is to say, members of a Particular Baptist Church practlsing Strict
communion, who subscribe to the said Doctrinal Basis and who pay to the Corporation an annual
subscription to be fixed from time to time by the Council

(b) Delegate Members" That is to say, members being delegates nominated by a Particular
Baptist Church practising Strict communion which adheres to the said Doctrinal Basis and makes
an annual donation to the Corporation of noi less than five pounds or of such other amounts as

shall be fixed from time to time by the Council.

PROVIDED THAT Churches consisting of less than ten members shall be entitled to nominate
one Delegate Member and that Churches consisting of ten or more members shall be entitled
to nominate two Delegate Members, that Churches consisting of twenty or more members
shall be entitled to nominate three Delegate Members and that Churches consisting of forty or
more members shall be entitled to nominate four Delegates. The nomination of a person as a
Delegate Member shall be in writing, signed by the Secretary of the Church, and the same
shall be delivered to the Secretary of the Corporation, and upon such nomination and
notification in writing of his/her consent to act as such Delegate Member the person

nominated shall, subject to the approval of the Council, be duly entered in the Register of
Members Each Delegate Member shall subscribe to the said Doctrinal Basis and shall be
entitled to one vote only, notwithstanding that he/she may also be an Ordinary Member of the
Corporation.

(c) Associate Members. That is to say, persons who satisfy the Council that they are in sympathy
with the said Doctrinal Basis and with the objects of the Corporation. Each Associate Member
shall pay the Corporation an annual subscription of an amount to be fixed from trme to time by the
Council. Associate membership does not carry the right to vote.

The Corporation shall hold a General Meeting in every calendar year as its Annual General
Meeting at such time and place as may be determined by the Council.

. The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by a Council of Management

The members of the Council shall be elected at each Annual General Meeting from among the
Ordinary Members and the Delegate Members of the Corporation, and every Church entitled to
nominate a Delegate Member shall be entitled to nominate in writing a male member to be
included in the list of persons to be submitted to the meeting for election"

lmmediately upon election, the Council shall proceed to elect from amongst their number a
Chairman, a Deputy Chairman, and a Treasurer.

At the Annual General Meeting in every year the Council shall lay before the Corporation a proper
income and expenditure account for the period since the last preceding account (or in the case of
the first account since the incorporation of the Corporation) made up to a date not more than four
months before such meeting, together with a proper balance sheet made up as at the same date.
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

WAYS WE CAN HELP YOU

We exist to serve the churches and we are able to do this in a number of ways, as outlined below. If
you feel that we can help in any of the ways listed please contact the Chief Executive.

Grants and Loans
When redundant chapels are sold the money is invested and the investment income is available to
make grants to other churches whose ministries are expanding and who need to redevelop their
buildings. ln some cases, the capitalsum may be lent to churches, either as an interest-free loan or as
an interest-bearing loan at a competitive rate of interest.

Professional Advice
The office staff are available to offer advice on many day-to-day matters associated with the
administrative side of running a church. In addition, the Board of Directors comprise a group of men
who are actively involved in the work and who are able to give preliminary guidance as to how a

church should proceed in the light of a particular difficulty that may arise. We have expertise in various
professional fields including accountancy, architecture, health and safety issues, investments, law,

and surveying.

Trusteeship
The Corporation has been recognised as a Baptist Trust Corporation within the meaning of the Baptist
and CongregatronalTrusts Act, 1951 and may be appointed a trustee of any Particular Baptist Church
practising strict communion. Churches appointing the Corporation as a trustee will not in future be

faced with the necessity of finding a lot of other trustees (sometimes as many as twelve or thirteen),
even if the trust deed requires it. The Corporation is willing to act as trustee alongside local people or

as Sole Trustee. ln this way churches will no longer be faced with difficulties arising from the fact that
widely scattered trustees are rarely able to meet; nor wrll problems arise if some of the trustees
change their doctrinal position or refuse to act in a matter of importance. Furthermore, the difficulties
that can arise when the last of the trustees has died or cannot be traced wiil not occur.

We have a programme for assisting churches of which the Corporation is a trustee by commissioning
a survey of their premises and working with them to implement a structured programme of essential
maintenance. ln addition advice concerning church problems is often sought, but it should be made

clear that the willingness of the Corporation to give advice is by no means limited to those churches of

which it is a trustee. Any church may approach the Corporation knowing that its appeal will receive a

sym pathetic consideration.

Endowment Funds
We administer a number of endowment funds such as our Loan Fund, Ministers' Aid Fund, Benevolent

Fund, the Pastors' Fund, and the B A Warburton Fund (which under the terms of the trust is available

to assist men who, being members of our churches, are in training for the Ministry)" We are always

willing to accept trusteeship of other similar funds.

Tax-efficient Giving
We are able to help churches maximise their resources through our Gift Aid scheme, which is
particularly helpful to churches that may not have in-house expertise or to individuals who wish to give

anonymously. in addition, one gift to us can be distributed to various causes on behalf of the donor.
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GR.ACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

WAYS YOU CAN HELP US

By giving
We exist to serve the churches and we make no charge for doing so (apart from specific services such

as the Gift Aid scheme). However, serving others is a costly business; office rent has to be paid; the
audit fee has to be paid, so do our staff! These costs are met out of the generous giving of the Lord's
people and from our investment income, (although that is income that would otherwise be given to

churches). You can help us by making personal donations to defray these expenses and by

encouraging your church to do so as well.

By becoming a personal member
Annual subscriptions are.
Full Membership - f 10.00 per annum. Associate Membership - f5.00 per annum.
Personal membership is a more committed way of supporting us in our ministry, but in addition it

enables you to attend our Annual General Meeting and have a say in the way the Corporation is run.

The membership form makes it clear what type of membership is applicable in your case. Be warned!
lf ever the Corporation were to close down with debts, personal members would be required to

contribute f5 towards repaying them. However, we trust that by acting as good stewards of all that the
Lord has entrusted to us, it will never happen"

By encouraging your church to become a subscribing church
Churches that make a gift to the funds of the Corporation in the course of a year are entitled to send
Delegates to our Annual General Meeting. ln this way the churches can become closely involved in

the ongoing ministry of the Corporation.

By remembering us in your will.
The help of friends who have remembered the work in their wills has been a source of great
encouragement over the years. A "Form of Bequest" is given below, which may be used in this
connection.

"l give and bequeath to the Treasurer for the time being of the GRACE BAPTIST TRUST
CORPORATION the sum of f_ free of duties to be applied to the general purposes of
the said Corporation, and I direct that the receipt of the said Treasurer shall be taken and
deemed a sufficient discharge for the same."

By telling others about our work and encouraging them to support us.
You may have friends who are not familiar with the ministry of the Grace Baptist Trust Corporation.
Tell them about the many services we offer and all the help and advice we can give"

By telling us about the needs of churches and individuals.
We administer a number of funds that are to be used for the benefit of others when they are in need.
Sometimes we know about the need, and sometimes we do not. lf you know of a church or church
member who needs our help, and you feel it is appropriate to let us know, we would love to hear from
yo u"
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